UNITED
CER

International Convention Distr.
o _ GENERAL
on the Elimination
CERD/ U SR. 1178
of all Forms of 23 August 1996
Racial Discrimination Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Forty-ninth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1178t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 20 August 1996, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Draft concl uding observations concerning the tenth to the fourteenth
periodic reports of India (continued)

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the fifth to the seventh
periodic reports of China (continued)

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG AND URGENT
PROCEDURES (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee at
this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 96-17941 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the tenth to fourteenth periodic
reports of India (CERD ¢J 49/ M sc.6) (continued)

Par agraph 19

1. M. WO FRUM said that the Comrittee should not be discrimnatory inits
references to regions of India. The tone of the draft concludi ng observations
had been toughened. However, the Committee should also try to stress the
positive aspects of its dialogue with representatives of the State party, such
as the plurality of the mass nmedia and their role in defending human rights.

2. The CHAIRMAN, in response to a comrent nmade by M. RECHETQOV, suggested
t hat paragraph 19 should refer sinply to "an increase of violence".

3. M _SHAHI said he understood that the Conmmittee had agreed to nove the
references to the National Security Act and, in Janmu and Kashmir, to the
Public Safety Act from paragraph 11 to paragraph 19.

4, The CHAI RMAN suggested that a subparagraph could be inserted after

par agraph 19 which would refer to the linmted powers of the National

Conmi ssion on Human Rights to investigate violence, followed by a new
paragraph to the effect that the Cormittee regretted that the National
Security Act and, in Janmu and Kashmir, the Public Safety Act remained in
force, and that a Criminal Law Arendnent Bill containing many of the
provisions of the Terrorist and Disruptive Activities (Prevention) Act was in
preparation.

5. M. CH GOVERA pointed out that the draft concluding observations nade
frequent reference to Jamu and Kashmir, although in the dial ogue between the
Committee and representatives of India, there had been no such enphasis. The
reference to Jammu and Kashmir should therefore be deleted. Also, was the
Committee sure that the Crimnal Law Amendnent Bill contained many of the
provisions of the Terrorist and Disruptive Activities (Prevention) Act?

If not, that reference should also be renoved.

6. M. DI ACONU expressed concern that, if paragraph 19 referred just to
Janmu and Kashmir, the Comm ttee woul d conme under attack for political
reasons. The Conmittee should, therefore, use the words "in sone areas of
India" in paragraph 19 and throughout its draft concludi ng observations
on | ndi a.

7. M. SHAH agreed that nore information on the Criminal Law Anendnent Bill
was needed. The draft concludi ng observations should refer to Jammu and
Kashmir because the scale of the repression taking place rendered the
situation there unlike anywhere else in the country.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 3

8. The CHAIRMAN said that the Cormittee believed that it could have a
positive influence on Governnents. Any conments that could be construed as an
attack woul d underm ne that influence. The new paragraph might therefore

read: "The Committee is concerned that the National Security Act and, in sone
areas of India, the Public Safety Act, remain in force and that a Criminal Law
Amendnent Bill currently in preparation nay include certain of the provisions

of the Terrorist and Disruptive Activities (Prevention) Act".

9. M. SHAH said that nowhere else in India had 40,000 peopl e been

killed or were there 90,000 people nmissing. The Conmittee's attenpts at an
even- handed approach were misguided. The reference to one particular area was
not condemation but an expression of concern

10. M. GARVALOV said that, during consideration of the report of India, the
Conmittee had concentrated on the situation of the untouchables. However,
they were referred to only once in the draft concludi ng observati ons.
Moreover, if the Committee opted for a nore general reference to "other areas
of India", the sane approach should be taken with regard to other

States parties.

11. M. CH GOVERA, supported by M. de GOUTTES, expressed concern that
matters that were being put forward for inclusion in the draft concludi ng
observations had not been taken up with the representatives of India. It
woul d be inproper to use information that had not been discussed with the
State party.

12. M. DI ACONU, supported by M. de GOUTTES, suggested that the Conmittee
defer its consideration of the draft concl uding observations on India and take
time to |l ook again at the records of the discussion with representatives of
India and the proposed text.

13. M. SHAH agreed that the Committee should defer its decision on the
draft concludi ng observations. |If it agreed that only information discussed
with the representatives of India could be included, that approach would have
to be applied to all States parties.

Par agr aph 20

14. M. CH GOVERA said that as he understood it, the courts in India could
award damages to victinms of human rights violations.

15. M. SHAHI, supported by M. WO FRUM said that under the Convention
States parties had to provide, in law, for recourse to the courts in the case
of human rights violations. |t should not nerely be left to the discretion of
the courts whether to adnit a case or not.

16. M. RECHETOV proposed that the text should note that the Suprene Court
had in some cases reaffirmed the principle of awardi ng conpensati on.

17. M. CHH GOVERA proposed that the paragraph should read: "Although it is
noted that the Indian courts have jurisdiction to award conpensation in



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 4

matters of human rights violations, including violations of the rights under
the Convention, there is no specific Statute in India which provides for
conpensation for victinms of human rights violations ..."

Par agr aph 21

18. M. SHAH suggested that the paragraph shoul d i ncl ude the anmendnent
adopted earlier for paragraph 13, recomendi ng that the National Human Ri ghts
Conmi ssion should al so be allowed to consider violations by the arnmed forces
whi ch had occurred nore than one year previously. Although the representative
of India had stated that the Conmission already had such powers, an officia
docunent on the functions of that body proved ot herwi se.

Par agr aph 24

19. M. CH GOVERA pointed out that, as article 5 of the Convention did not
create any rights, the word "enshrined" was inappropriate and shoul d be
repl aced by "provided for".

20. M. van BOVEN proposed that the paragraph should becone the first
par agraph in the suggestions and reconmendati ons section

Par agr aph 25

21. M. GARVALOV proposed that paragraph 25 should al so be noved to the
suggesti ons and reconmmendati ons section

Par agr aph 26

22. M. RECHETQV, in response to a point nmade by M. GARVALOV, suggested that
the word "entire" should be deleted and the word "refornm in the | ast sentence
be replaced by "eradi cate".

23. M. van BOVEN said that the notion in the | ast sentence would be better
expressed by the existing wording.

Par agr aph 27

24, M. WO FRUM supported by M. DI ACONU, said that the paragraph should
refer to the civil disturbances in Nagaland, as well as in Jammu and Kashmr.

25. M. SHAH said that the paragraph was highly controversial and should
be deleted in its entirety. The information on the recent el ections given by
the representative of India, which was to be found in paragraph 48 of

docunent CERD/ CJ SR 1162, differed greatly fromthe accounts given in the
world's press. In addition, the South Asia Human Ri ghts Docunentati on Centre
had reported the extension to the entire north-east of the Arned Forces
Speci al Powers Act which had been passed in 1956 to suppress the aspirations
of the Nagas. The paragraph, if retained, would give the inpression that the
Conmittee was endorsing India' s statenment that Janmu and Kashmir was an
integral part of India.

26. M. DI ACONU agreed that the paragraph should be del et ed.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 5

27. M. WO FRUM said that he was opposed to the deletion and undertook to
draft an unbiased text relating to article 5 (c) of the Convention for
consi deration the follow ng day.

28. M. SHAH pointed out that article 5 (c¢) could not be said to apply to
elections in a State whose total area had been di sputed since i ndependence.

Par agr aph 28

29. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the word "shoul d* be inserted before "adopt".

Par agr aph 29

30. After a brief discussion in which M. SHERIFIS, M. RECHETOV,

M. GARVALOV and Ms. SADIQ ALI took part, the CHAI RMAN suggested that the
par agraph should read: "The Committee suggests that the State party ensure
wi de publicity, possibly in the nost commonly spoken | anguages, for its tenth
to fourteenth reports and the concludi ng observations."

Par agr aph 30

31. M. SHERIFIS proposed that the words "at its earliest conveni ence" be
inserted after "ratify" and that the formula be used in all concluding
observations in the future.

32. M. YUTZIS, stressing the conplenmentarity of the work of the Conmittee
and that of the Special Rapporteur on contenporary fornms of racism racial

di scrimnation, xenophobia and intol erance, proposed that a new paragraph be
i nserted after paragraph 30 recommendi ng that any visit to India by the
Speci al Rapporteur should be used to help the Cormittee to gain a better
understandi ng of the situation in that country.

Draft concl uding observations concerning the fifth to seventh periodic reports
of China (CERD ¢/ 49/ M sc. 13)

33. M. WO FRUM stressed his regret that the Cormittee's highly constructive
and encouragi ng di al ogue with the del egati on of China had been curtail ed by
time constraints, |eaving sonme questions open and hence inadequately reflected
in the Commttee's concl udi ng observations.

Paragraph 1

34. M. RECHETOV proposed that "little data" should be replaced by
"insufficient data" in the second sentence.

Paragraph 7

35. M. SHERIFIS suggested that, for the sake of consistency with other
par agr aphs under Section C, the sentence should begin: "It is noted with
appreci ation that "



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 6

36. M. WI FRUM expl ai ned that the sentence was so phrased, w thout any word
of appreciation, because very little witten informati on had been provi ded on
the aws in question and none at all on inplenmentation, thus precluding any
proper assessnent by the Committee.

37. M. GARVALOV said that the information provided had been encouraging - a
poi nt he had nade during the discussion - and he woul d have preferred sone
wording to that effect.

38. After an exchange of views in which M. SHERIFIS, M. D ACONU
M. GARVALOV and M. de GOUTTES took part, the CHAIRMAN said that it appeared
to be preferable to retain the original wording.

Par agraph 9

39. M. AHVADU proposed that "lack of information" should be replaced by
"absence of information"

40. In response to a question by M. GARVALOV, the CHAI RMAN suggest ed
deleting the word "their" and placing an apostrophe after "minorities" in the
second sentence

41. M. RECHETOV said that, under the Convention, the Committee coul d not
properly call for protective |egal provisions for undefined mnority groups.
He suggested that the wording be anended to read: "The |ack of information
regarding | egal status for minority groups that are scattered throughout China
and their enjoynent of rights as enunerated in the Convention is noted with
regret.”

42. M. WI FRUM poi nted out that the content of paragraph 9 was based on
China's report itself, which referred to a | aw on that issue that was under
consi deration but the enactnent of which had been del ayed.

43. The CHAIRMAN said in reply to a suggestion by M. AHVADU that "scattered"
had been the word used in China's report. He took it that the Conmittee

wi shed to retain the paragraph as it stood, subject to the nminor drafting
change in the second sentence.

Par agraph 11

44, M. YUTZIS observed that the second sentence, expressed in the

condi tional tense, was contradictory to the first, rendering the paragraph

i nconprehensi ble. The Comittee could express concern or regret only if it
had ascertained that the situation reported in the first sentence had in fact
resulted in undue changes in the denographic conposition of a region.

45, M. FERRERO COSTA, supported by M. YUTZIS said that the second sentence
detracted fromthe validity of the first. The problem which was a
substantive one, night be resolved by deleting the first part of the second
sentence and continuing the first sentence, after "minority areas", with the
words "which could result in any changes ..."




CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 7

46. M. GARVALOV said he was in favour of deleting the second sentence, since
the Conmittee could not specul ate on what mi ght happen in the future.

47. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had had sone information to the
effect that the situation had resulted in sone denographi c changes.

48. M. RECHETOV, after calling for consistency in the Conmttee's approach
to texts of concluding observations, specifically when it came to naking
drafting changes in plenary, agreed that the issue raised in paragraph 11 was
one of substance. Denpgraphic changes were occurring throughout the world,
and the Conmittee needed to take account of the inpact of any such changes.

49, M. CHH GOVERA suggested that M. Ferrero Costa's anendment might be
reworded slightly to read: "as this may result in changes in the denographic
conposition of an autonomous region".

50. M. SHERIFIS objected in principle to the reference to "mnority areas"”,
since they were areas within the borders of a country and the Committee's
expression of concern suggested that it was encouragi ng segregation or
ghettos. "Mnority areas" should therefore be replaced by "autononous

regi ons".

51. M. DI ACONU agreed that the text should refer to "autononous regions"”
rather than "minority areas". He also took M. Rechetov's point that

denogr aphi ¢ change was not in itself a bad thing. The present wording of the
par agraph woul d al so apply to a case where a State gave doctors, teachers or
engi neers a financial incentive to encourage themto work in underdevel oped
areas, which would actually be a comendabl e policy. He accordingly suggested
the wordi ng "substantial changes in denographic conposition".

52. M. YUTZIS said that the Committee's current difficulties only showed how
important it was to discuss the issues fully with the State party. The State
party's representative had nmentioned the question of incentives for Han
settlers, but there had not been tinme to discuss the matter fully.

53. M. GARVALOV said that an influx of Han settlers into the autononous
regi ons woul d not be a probl emunless there were so many of themthat they
usur ped the functions of |ocal government.

54, After a discussion in which M. WO FRUM M. GARVALOV and M. van BOVEN
took part, the CHAI RMAN, speaking as a nmenber of the Committee, proposed the
following wording for the end of the paragraph "... as this may result in
substanti al changes in the denographi c conposition of those regions and in the
character of the local society".

Par agraph 12

55. M. AHMADU suggested the following wording: "It is regretted that little
i nformati on was provided on the distinctive religions of several mnority
nationalities. Concern is expressed with regard to actual enjoynent of the
right to freedomof religion, particularly in the Miuslimparts of Xinjiang and
in Tibet. Note is taken with concern of the reported destruction by the State
of nosques, Buddhi st and Lama tenples and other places of worship of the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 8

mnority nationalities. Deep concern is expressed for the reported
restrictions placed on the exercise of religious rights of the nenbers of the
et hni c groups.”

56. M. RECHETOV said that he personally had no objective information about
any destruction of places of worship by the Chinese Governnment. Accordingly,
he coul d not support the paragraph as it stood.

57. M. WO FRUM (Country Rapporteur) said that he had referred to the issue
and that M. Ahnadu' s suggested wordi ng was therefore accurate.

58. The CHAIRMAN said that it was inportant to retain the first phrase of the
ori gi nal paragraph, which explained why the Committee was concerning itself
with religious matters.

59. M. GARVALOV said that he had objected to the inclusion of references to
unproven allegations in the concluding observations. He was al so doubtful
about the reference to the alleged destruction of Lana tenples; as he
remenbered the discussion, the Chinese representative had nmerely expl ai ned
the reason behind the Government's involvenent in the selection of the

el event h Panchen Lama. He suggested that the word "an" in the first sentence
shoul d be deleted to read: "... a distinctive religion is essential to the
identity ..."

60. M. FERRERO COSTA said that the references to the all eged destruction of
pl aces of worship should be retained. Such allegations were frequently made
and, as M. Wl frum had said, they had been nentioned during the discussion

61. M. SHERIFIS pointed out that the Conmittee was not conpetent to coment
on the destruction of places of worship unless that destruction had been
raci al ly-noti vat ed.

62. M. DI ACONU agreed that the Committee could discuss religious freedom
only in the context of racial discrinmnation. In the case of China, the
Committee had al so heard about the Government's efforts to build or repair
nosques, tenples and other places of worship. Supported by M. WIFRUM he
proposed that the second and third sentences of the paragraph shoul d be
deleted, and the end of the first sentence should read: "... and in Tibet,
including the availability of places of worship and the exercise of religious
rights by nenbers of all ethnic groups”

63. M. SHAHI suggested the follow ng wording: " several mnority
nationalities, [the Cormttee] regrets that little informati on was provided
with reference to the actual enjoynent of the right to freedom of religion

t he preservation of Mislimand Buddhi st places of worship and the reports of
restrictions placed on the exercise of religious rights of the nenbers of the
ethnic groups". He did not wish to refer specifically to the allegations of
destruction of nobsques, since simlar allegations had been nade in respect of
ot her countries, such as India, but not nmentioned in the concluding

observati ons.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 9

64. M. de GOUTTES supported the amendnent proposed by M. Diaconu to the
first sentence. However, he did not agree that the second and third sentences
shoul d be deleted, since it was inportant to give exanples of the practices
the Conmittee had in mind. He accordingly suggested that the first sentence
shoul d be anended as M. Diaconu had proposed and that the second sentence
shoul d begin: "Note is taken in particular of the reported destruction ...",
continuing with the original text and replacing "alleged restrictions" by
"reported restrictions".

65. M. FERRERO COSTA suggested that the first sentence shoul d be anended to
read: " i ncluding the preservation of places of worship ...", as suggested
by M. Shahi. The second and third sentences should be retained, as

M. de Gouttes had suggested, except that the second sentence shoul d begin:
"In this regard, note is taken ..."

66. M. GARVALOV said that the Conmittee's concludi ng observations shoul d not
contain references to allegations as if they were proven facts. He supported
M. Diaconu's original amendnent.

67. M. RECHETQV, said that he could not support the inclusion of the

speci fic exanpl es quoted in the paragraph because he had no objective evidence
that they were true. In paragraph 25 of the draft, the Comittee asked for

i nfornmati on about the all eged destruction of places of worship: surely that
was sufficient. He supported M. Diaconu's original amendnent.

68. M. SHAHI, proposed that he should circul ate his anmendnment, which was
simlar to M. Diaconu's, in witing at the next neeting to provide a basis
for further discussion.

69. It was so deci ded.

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG AND URGENT
PROCEDURES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Rwanda

70. M. WIFRUM speaking as co-ordinator of the working group on Rwanda,
recal l ed the declaration on the situation of Rmanda adopted by the Conmittee
at its previous session and its decision to establish a small working group
Since the revised recomendati ons which he had subsequently drafted had not
been well received by the Conmittee, he was withdrawing them The working
group had net again and had taken the view that, in view of the Cormittee's
reluctance to nmake any proposals that went beyond the declaration, no further
action should be taken at the current session so as not to weaken the content
of the declaration, which would in any case appear in the Comrittee's report.
He woul d have thought that the Committee could performa useful function in

gi ving sone gui dance to the constitutional conference referred to in the third
paragraph of the declaration, but in the circunstances, the Committee's action
at the current session would be confined to reiterating its declaration, with



CERD/ C/ SR. 1178
page 10

particul ar enphasis on the third paragraph, and its offer to be involved in
efforts to resolve the situation. Those conclusions did not prejudge any
action the Conmittee might wish to take - but under a different procedural
approach - to follow up the report by Ms. Sadiq Ali.

71. M. GARVALOV concl uded that the Conmittee's report of the current session
woul d thus reflect the fact that the Committee renai ned seized of its previous
concl udi ng observations on Rvanda and that it reiterated the position
contained in its declaration.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




